
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
Tuesday, August 27, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Hobson.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 25

July 30, 2013 Public Hearing
July 30, 2013 Regular Meeting
August 13, 2013 Public Hearing
August 13, 2013 Regular Meeting

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10874 (Z13-0025) - 2253 Wilkinson Street, Sharon & Thomas Matthes
and Caroline, Mary & Carl Maloney

26 - 26

To give Bylaw No. 10874 second and third readings.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10881 (Z13-0026) - 330 Taylor Road, Comfort Crafted Homes Inc. 27 - 27

To give Bylaw No. 10881 second and third readings.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 Liquor License Application No. LL13-0003 - 293-297 Bernard Avenue, Viewcrest
Estates Ltd.

28 - 35

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
proposed liquor primary license to come forward.
This application seeks Council’s support for a Liquor Primary License for a new



liquor primary establishment located on the subject property.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0092 - 2261 Wilkinson
Street, Brian & Sonya Arrance

36 - 44

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
proposed variance license to come forward.
A Development Variance Permit is sought to allow greater site coverage for
buildings, driveways and parking than permitted by the Zoning Bylaw.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 6, 2013 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Branch, Community Planning and Real Estate Division (PMc) 

Application: LL13-0003 Owner:  
Viewcrest Estates Ltd. 

Inc. No. 80372 

Address: 293-297 Bernard Ave. Applicant: 
Fresco Restaurant Ltd. 

(Audrey Surrao) 

Subject: [Title] 

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)(MXR) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, be it resolved THAT: 
 
Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from Fresco Restaurant Ltd. 293-297 Bernard Avenue, Kelowna BC, (legally 
described as Lot 10, Block 13, DL 139, O.D.Y.D., plan 462 and Lot 11, Block 13 District Lot 139, 
ODYD Plan 462 except Plan 9892) for a Liquor Primary license with a capacity of 34 persons and 
hours of service from 11:00am-2:00am daily are as follows: 
 
a) The location of the establishment: 
The property is located within the Downtown core, and is suitable for the proposed small-scale 
Liquor Primary license. 
b) The proximity of the establishment to other social or recreational facilities and public 
buildings: 
No negative impact on surrounding facilities/buildings is anticipated. 
c) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 
The capacity and hours are deemed appropriate based on other establishments in the immediate 
area. 
d) The number and market focus of liquor-primary license establishments within a 
reasonable distance of the proposed location: 
The size and focus of the establishment would compliment existing establishments in the 
Downtown area. 
e) The impact of noise on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment: 



29

LL13-0003 – Page 2 

 
The potential for noise would be compatible with surrounding land uses. 
f) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
The proposed license would add to the continued development of a safe, vibrant Downtown area. 
g) View of residents:  
The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within the 
minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The methods used 
to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor Licensing Policy & 
Procedures.” 
h) Recommendation: 
Council recommends that the application for a Liquor Primary license be approved. 

2.0 Purpose  

This application seeks Council’s support for a Liquor Primary License for a new liquor primary 
establishment located on the subject property. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department  

Council Policy #359 specifies guidelines for the siting and density of Liquor Primary 
Establishments.  These parameters are designed to help control the density of late-night 
establishments with a focus on alcohol (nightclubs, pubs, etc.).  Given the location of existing of 
establishments in the area, the application complies with Policy #359.   

The application represents a modest sized establishment.  The proposed license would create 
greater opportunities to serve a range of patrons, and compliment existing licensed 
establishments, without causing significant changes to the existing business operation.  Given the 
small scale, niche market that is proposed through this business operation, this meets the intent 
of the City fostering the provision of facilities which diversify the selection of venues and 
entertainment opportunities throughout the Downtown. 

Given the above considerations, the Urban Planning Department is supportive of the proposed 
Liquor Primary establishment.  In addition, both the RCMP and Bylaw Enforcement have no 
concerns with the proposal. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, all new Liquor Primary license requests require 
Local Government comment. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant has requested a Liquor Primary (LP) license in order to create a small liquor 
primary establishment (Micro Bar Bites) in the vacant lease space.  The LP is being requested to 
allow for greater flexibility in providing patrons an alternative experience while waiting for seats 
at the nearby RauDZ restaurant which is owned and operated by the same group.  As the seating 
capacity is under 100 patrons, the Liquor Primary (Minor) use does not require a rezoning.   
 
There are no changes to the exterior of the building, and there is no outdoor patio proposed.  
Additionally, there is no other Liquor Primary – minor establishments located on neighbouring 
properties.  The draft occupant load calculation shows a maximum occupant load of 34 persons. 
 
Proposed License Summary: 



30

LL13-0003 – Page 3 

 
Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 

Close 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 

        

Licensed Area Capacity 

Indoor (Dining Area) 34 

Outdoor Patio 0 

Total Proposed Person Capacity  34* 

*The proposed capacity is based on preliminary floor plans, which are subject to approval by the Building & 
Permitting Branch and the LCLB. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the south west corner of the intersection of Bernard Avenue 
and Water Street. The unit address is 1500 Water Street, and faces Water Street. 

 

Subject Property Map:         293-297 Bernard Avenue 
 

 
Other liquor primary establishments (pubs, nightclubs, casino) in the surrounding area include: 

Establishment Proximity Category Capacity Establishment Type 

Kelly O’Bryans -60m Small 60 Neighbourhood Pub 

Doc Willoughby’s ~100m Medium 180 Neighbourhood Pub 

Liquid Zoo ~160m Large 301 Adult Entertainment 

O’Flannigan’s ~200m Medium 148 Neighbourhood Pub 

Cheetah’s ~250m Medium 218 Adult Entertainment 

Level ~275m Large 464 Cabaret 

Kelly O’Bryans 

O’Flanagan"s 

Doc Willoughby’s 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Blue Gator 

Cheetah’s  
Liquid Zoo 

RauDZ 



31

LL13-0003 – Page 4 

 

The Habitat ~300m Medium 225 Music Venue 

Sapphire ~310m Large 473 Cabaret 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

 Small establishments (with person capacity less than 100 persons): 
o i) Should not be located beside an existing Small establishment. 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 

Downtown.2  The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

The application was circulated to a number of departments and agencies, including the 
Building & Permitting Branch, Bylaw Services, Fire Department, and the Kelowna RCMP.  
No concerns were raised from the circulation. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: April 3, 2013  
Date response from LCLB:  August 3, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

    
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning and 
Real       Real Estate Division  

Attachments:  

Location Map 
Floor Plan (with occupant load) 
Applicant Rationale letter 
Exterior Photo 

                                                      
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 



32



33



34



35



36

 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 25, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (BD) 

Application: DVP13-0092 Owner: 
Brian George and Sonya Jane 
Arrance 

Address: 2261 Wilkinson Street Applicant: Sonya Arrance 

Subject: [Title]   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0092, for Lot 3, 
District Lot 136, ODYD, Plan KAP89721, located at 2261 Wilkinson Street, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
Section 13.2.6 (a): Site Coverage 
 
        To vary the permitted site coverage of buildings and hard surfaces from 50% permitted to 
        75% proposed (as per Schedule A). 

2.0 Purpose   

A Development Variance Permit is sought to allow greater site coverage for buildings, driveways 
and parking than permitted by the Zoning Bylaw. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

A variance to allow a relaxation of the site coverage from 50% permitted to 75% is being sought to 
allow the property owner to maintain the site as it currently exists.   

The immediate neighbourhood block was rezoned and infilled with medium-sized lot dwellings 
accompanied by 1½ storey garages to provide storage space in the upper half storey. Although 
the driveways were intended to remain gravel, the developer paved driveways to the garage 
entrances. The resulting site coverage exceeds the permitted 50% and has triggered a variance to 
allow a suite in the single family dwelling. Incidentally, the original inspection did not include 
areas for walking paths and courtyards as part of the site calculation. 
 



37

DVP13-0092 – Page 2 

 
 

 

Technical comments provided by the Building and Permitting department and the Development 
Engineering branch do not identify drainage or other concerns. As this is an existing condition for 
five of the parcels and support from the immediate property owners has been provided, Staff 
recommend support for this variance. However, future infill sites that are rezoned to medium 
sized lots will have to be evaluated more comprehensively to determine the ultimate build-out 
potential where no lane access is provided. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant applied to convert a portion of the single family dwelling to a suite.  In reviewing 
the application, it was identified that the site coverage exceeded the allowable and needed to 
be varied in order to proceed with the suite.  
 
As background, the subdivision was planned with a laneway to provide rear access to the garages, 
however due to neighbourhood opposition the laneway was never constructed. The development 
was constructed with detached garages and the accesses were paved. Given the comparatively 
modest size of the lot, the pavement contributed to exceeding the allowable site coverage.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Central City area of Kelowna. The Guisachan Village area is 
within walking distance with transit available on Gordon Avenue and Springfield Road. The 
subject property is located within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The surrounding properties 
in all directions are zoned RU2 – Medium Lot Housing with single family dwellings. 

4.3       Subject Property Map: 2261 Wilkinson Street 

 

 



38

DVP13-0092 – Page 3 

 
 

 

4.4     Zoning Analysis 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU2 – Medium Lot Housing zone as follows:  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU2  ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 400 m2 568 m2 

Lot Width 13 m 13.6 m 

Lot Depth 30 m  41.5 m 

Site Coverage (buildings) 40%   38.7 % 

Site Coverage  
(buildings and Parking) 

50% 75%  

 Variance required to site coverage. 

5.0 Technical Comments   

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

The house was designed and constructed without an attached/built in garage.  Therefore, 
to provide protected parking an accessory building was constructed at the rear of the 
property.  The originally proposed laneway at the rear of the subdivision was not 
constructed which then required that the accessory building needed to be accessed from 
the front.  When evaluating the site coverage on the property the house, garage and 
minimum required driveway were considered.  Other paved areas were excluded as they 
were considered to be walking paths and courtyards. 
 
Allowing this the site coverage ended up being over the allowable 50% total however, with 
no other means of accessing the parking at the rear of the property it was deemed within 
reason and acceptable under the restrictive situation. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

This development variance permit application to vary the site coverage does not 
compromise any municipal services provided that roof leaders are not connected to the 
storm service. 

6.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received:  June 6, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Urban Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Urban Planning Manager  

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning  
and Real Estate 

Attachments:   

Site Plan (schedule A) 
Context/Site Photos 



39



40



41



42



43

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 

 

 Development Variance Permit No .: DVP13-0092  
 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing  
 
N/A 
 

 

 

ISSUED TO:  Brian and Sonya Arrance 
   
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:   2261 Wilkinson Street 
 

 

 

 LOT D.L. PLAN SECTION TOWNSHIP DISTRICT 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 
  3 

 
136 

 
 KAP89721 

 
  

 
  

 
ODYD  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, 
except as specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the Applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision 
Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from 
bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw 
provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances by the Applicant or City staff. 
 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 

 AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 are granted:  

Section 13.2.6 (a): Site Coverage 
 
To vary the permitted site coverage of buildings and hard surfaces from 50% permitted to 
75% proposed (as per Schedule A). 
 

   2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: None Required. 
 
   3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 

and provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall 
form a part hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of 

the date of this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 



44

 - 2 - DVP13-0092 
 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization 

to transfer the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material 

submitted in support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  
Upon issuance of the Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to 
save harmless and effectually indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and 

by whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me 

of engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any 
property owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or 
custom is obliged, directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or 
maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development 

Variance Permit, the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the 
occupancy and/or use of any building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to 
land until all of the engineering works or other works called for by the Permit have been completed 
to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Director of Land Use Management. 

 
 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land 
Use Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
6. APPROVALS: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY COUNCIL ON THE ___th DAY OF AUGUST, 2013. 
 
ISSUED BY THE LAND USE MANAGEMENT DEPT. OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___TH DAY OF AUGUST 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning and Real Estate for 
Director of Land Use Management 
 


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - July 30, 2013 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - July 30, 2013 Regular Meeting.pdf
	3. Minutes - August 13 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - August 13 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 bl10874.pdf
	4.2 bl10881.pdf
	6.1 2013-08-27 Report - LL13-0003 Liquor License 293-297 Bernard Ave.docx
	6.1 2013-08-27 Attachments LL13-0003.pdf
	7.1 2013-08-27 Report DVP13-0092 2261 Wilkinson Street.docx
	7.1 2013-08-27 Attachments DVP13-0092.pdf
	7.1 2013-08-27 draft permit DVP13-0092.docx

